Architectural Expansion and Redevelopment
in St. Andrews, 1810-c1894.

Volume III (figs.142-315)

Robin Dennis Alexander Evetts.

Submitted for the degree of Doctor of Philosophy,
Fig. 142. Provost Sir Hugh Lyon Playfair, photographed with a collection of drawing and other instruments at about the time of the negotiations for the new Town Hall.
Fig. 143. South Street showing the new Town Hall, photographed between 1861 and 1870.
Fig. 145. Lithograph of James Anderson Hamilton's original design for the new Town Hall, 1857.
Fig. 146. Perspective of John Milne's competition drawing for the new Town Hall, 1857.
Fig. 147. John Milne's north elevation and section of his competition drawing for the new Town Hall, 1857.
Fig. 148. John Milne's competition drawing of the interior of the new Town Hall, 1857.
S' ANDREWS TOWN HALL

SIDE ELEVATION

FRONT ELEVATION

Fig. 149. North and west elevations of an anonymous competition drawing for the new Town Hall, 1857.
Alternative north elevation of an anonymous competition drawing for the new Town Hall, 1857.
Fig. 151. Sections and ceiling plan of an anonymous competition drawing for the new Town Hall, 1857.
152. South elevation of Charles Wilson's Royal Faculty of Procurator's Hall, Glasgow, 1854.
Fig. 153. Elevation of Queen Street, attributed to George Rae, 1857.
Fig. 154. No. 9 Queen Street, attributed to George Rae, erected 1857.
Fig. 155. No. 10 Queen Street, attributed to George Rae, erected 1860.
Fig. 156. Queen Street, showing the stepped, linking string course.
Fig. 157. No. 3 Queen Street, attributed to William Scott or George Rae, erected 1857.
Fig. 158. No. 4 Queen Street, George Rae, erected 1857.
Fig. 159. No. 5 Queen Street, attributed to George Rae, erected 1860.
Fig. 160. No. 13 Queen Street, attributed to George Rae, erected 1862.
Fig. 161. No. 14 Queen Street, attributed to George Rae, erected 1863.
Fig. 162. Nos. 6 and 7 Queen Street, attributed to John Milne, erected 1860.
Fig. 163. No. 8 Queen Street, John Milne, erected 1860.
Fig. 164. No. 11 Queen Street, John Milne, erected 1860
Fig. 165. No. 12 Queen Street, John Milne, erected 1860.
Fig. 166. Nos. 16 and 17 Queen Street, John Milne, erected 1863.
Fig. 167. No. 15 Queen Street, John Milne, erected 1863.
Fig. 168. No. 18 Queen Street, John Milne, erected 1863.
Fig. 169. Nos. 19 (1864), 20 and 21 Queen Street, John Milne, erected 1867.
Fig. 170. The Commercial Bank, no. 2 Queen Street, David Rhind, erected 1868-69.
Fig. 171. The Bank of Scotland, corner of Queen Street and South Street, Peddie and Kinnear, erected 1871 (demolished 1960).
Fig. 172. Nos. 21 and 22 Queen Street, John Milne, erected 1867. No. 23 Queen Street and St. Regulus, attributed to George Rae, erected 1868.
Fig. 173. St. Regulus, showing extensions to the east by Paul Waterhouse in 1920, and by Gillespie and Scott in 1946.
Fig. 174. Queen Street Terrace, showing no. 17 (Gillespie and Scott, 1893), Cowansrigg (David Henry, 1879), St. Andrew's Church Hall (David Henry, 1893), St. Andrew's Episcopal Church (Robert Rowand Anderson, 1869), and St. Regulus (attributed to George Rae, 1868).
Fig. 175. Nos. 2, 3 and 4 Queen Street Terrace, attributed to John Milne, erected 1867-68.
Fig. 176. No. 26 Queen Street Terrace, David Henry, erected 1871.
Fig. 177. Cowansrigg, no. 15 Queen Street Terrace, David Henry, erected 1879.
Fig. 178. Nos. 17 and 19 Queen Street Terrace, Gillespie and Scott, erected 1893.
Fig. 179. Nos. 18 and 20 Queen Street Terrace, John Milne, erected 1901.
Fig. 180. No. 16 Queen Street Terrace, David Henry, erected 1897.
Fig. 181. Nos. 11, 10 and 9 Dempster Terrace, attributed to Hall and Henry, erected 1870-71.
Fig. 182. Nos. 6, 5 and 4 Dempster Terrace, attributed to Hall and Henry, erected 1870-71. No. 3 Dempster Terrace, Gillespie and Scott, erected 1900-01.
Fig. 183. Nos. 1-3 West View, attributed to William Scott, erected between 1848-55.
Fig. 184. Nos. 1-3 West View, attributed to William Scott, erected between 1848-55; nos. 4-6 West View, attributed to Jesse Hall, erected between 1855-59. Drawing by Thomas Hodge, 1888.
Fig. 185. St. Andrew’s Rectory, Gillespie and Scott, erected 1896.
Fig. 186. Hill and Adamson’s view of St. Andrews from the West Sands, c.1846.
Fig. 187. St. Andrews from the West Sands, 1864-65.
Fig. 188. St. Andrews from the West Sands, 1869.
Fig. 189. St. Andrews from the West Sands, c1880.
Fig. 190. The Baths in c1880.
Fig. 191. The Baths from the foreshore in c1880.
Fig. 192. The Baths from the foreshore in c1910.
Fig. 193. The Castle from the east, showing the original form of the Baths, c.1846.
Fig. 194. The Castle from the east, before 1870, showing the extensions to the Baths of 1853.
Fig. 195. View of St. Andrews from St. Regulus' Tower, c. 1870-78.
Fig. 196. Sea View, formerly the Tontine, attributed to Robert Balfour, erected between 1809-17.
Fig. 197. St. Andrews Castle, showing Sea View to the right.
Fig. 198. The Whaum, erected between 1820-46, showing the east wall of St. Swithin's (now Canmore) adjoining.
Fig. 199. Gillespie Terrace.
Fig. 200. Nos. 2 and 1 Gillespie Terrace.
Fig. 201. Nos. 4 and 3 Gillespie Terrace.
Fig. 202. George Rae's north and south elevations of 4 and 3 Gillespie Terrace, 1853.
Fig. 203. Nos. 6 and 5 Gillespie Terrace.
Fig. 204. October meet, the Old Course, 1862, by Thomas Hodge, showing George Rae's original Royal and Ancient Golf Club House.
Fig. 205. Engraving of the Martyrs' Monument by Banks of Edinburgh, showing George Rae's original Royal and Ancient Golf Club House, c.1856
Fig. 206. Stone laying ceremony of the Royal and Ancient Golf Club House, 10th July 1863.
Fig. 207. Jesse Hall's front elevation for Clifton Bank, 1856.
Fig. 208. Bay View West and Clifton Bank.
Fig. 209. Classroom at Clifton Bank, before 1904.
Fig. 210. Dining hall at Clifton Bank, before 1904.
Fig. 211. George Rae's front elevation for Seaton House, 1864.
Fig. 212. Seaton House, George Rae, 1864.
SEATON HOUSE,
ST. ANDREWS.

Select Boarding House.
Favourably Situated for Invalid Visitors.

Uninterrupted View of Sea, &c. Sanitary Arrangements Perfect.

TERMS. &c., ON APPLICATION TO—

J. S. CONACHER, Proprietor.

Fig. 213. Advertisement for Seaton House as a boarding house, 1904.
Fig. 214. Plan of Scores Park by George Rae, 1847.
Fig. 215. Feuing plan of Scores Park by John Henderson, with house plans by John Chesser.
Fig. 216. University House, attributed to John Starforth, erected 1863-65.
Fig. 217. John Starforth’s design for a villa in the Scots baronial style, in *Villa Residences and Farm Architecture*, plate XVII.
Fig. 218. John Starforth's design for a villa in the Scots baronial style, in *Villa Residences and Farm Architecture*, plate LXIII.
Fig. 219. John Starforth’s plan of the principal floor of a villa in the Scots baronial style, in Villa Residences and Farm Architecture, plate XIII.
Fig. 220. John Starforth’s plan of the principal floor of a villa in the Scots baronial style, in Villa Residences and Farm Architecture, plate XXXIV.
Fig. 221. Christopher Kerr's proposals for the positioning of the drawing room fireplaces at University House.
Fig. 222. South elevation for extension to University House, 1871.
Fig. 223. East elevation for extension to University House, 1871.
Fig. 224. First floor plan showing extension to University House, 1871.
Fig. 225. Second floor plan showing extension to University House, 1871.
Fig. 226. Roof and Basement plans of extension to University House, 1871.
Fig. 227. Ground floor plan of University House in 1969.
Fig. 228. Drawing room, University House, looking north.
Fig. 229. Detail of ceiling and cornice, and the Ionic capitals of the screen in the drawing room, University House,
Fig. 230. Door and panelling of the tower smoking room, University House.
Fig. 231. Fireplace, window sill and panelling of the tower smoking room, University House.
Fig. 232. Plan of lofts, and east elevation of the stable block, University House, signed and dated, Jesse Hall, 7th February 1865.
Fig. 233. Stable block, University House, south elevation.
Fig. 234. Rockview and North Cliffe, Hall and Henry, erected 1864–66.
Fig. 235. Northcliffe from the east, showing David Henry's extension of 1893, and Gillespie and Scott's verandah of 1903.
Fig. 236. Rockview and North Cliffe from the south west, showing the west elevation of Rockview.
Fig. 237. Coach house, Rockview, 1865.
Fig. 238. David Henry's ground floor plan of North Cliffe, showing the extension to the east, with screen plans, initialled and dated 1891.
Fig. 239. David Henry's first floor plan of North Cliffe, showing the extension to the east, initialled and dated 1891.
Fig. 240. Gillespie and Scott's proposal for doors to augment the screen and curtain, showing David Henry's screen of 1891-93, drawing dated 1957.
Fig. 241. Gillespie and Scott's tracing of a baluster from the screen at North Cliff, perhaps taken from David Henry's original drawing.
Fig. 242. Gillespie and Scott's elevation to the large room of the partition which replaced David Henry's 1891-93 screen, showing part of the Robert Lorimer panelling.
Fig. 243. Gillespie and Scott's elevation of the partition which replaced David Henry's 1891-93 screen; elevation to the small room.
Fig. 244. Gillespie and Scott’s drawing for the verandah at North Cliffe, 1903.
Fig. 245. George Rae's Edgecliffe, south elevation, erected 1865-66.
Fig. 246. George Rae’s Edgecliffe, north elevation, erected 1865-66.
Fig. 247. R. W. Billings' drawing of Craigievar, Aberdeenshire.
Fig. 248. R. W. Billings’ drawing of Pinkie House, Midlothian.
Fig. 249. Peddie and Kinnear's Kirnan, erected 1867, south elevation showing porch added in 1924.
Fig. 250. Peddie and Kinnear's Kirnan, erected 1867, north elevation.
Fig.251. Peddie and Kinnear’s Kirnan, south elevation, showing some modification in the width of the house. Drawing signed and dated April 1867.
Fig. 252. Peddie and Kinnear's Kirnan, basement plan, signed and dated April 1867.
Fig. 253. Peddie and Kinnear's Kirnan, principal floor plan, dated April 1867.
Fig. 254. Peddie and Kinnear's Kirnan, bedroom floor plan, dated April 1867.
Fig. 255. Portrait bust of Thomas Purdie, situated in the former Chemistry Research Laboratory, to the rear of the east wing of the United College.
Fig. 256. Castlecliffe from the west, showing subsequent additions. David Bryce, 1869.
CASTLECLIFF AUXILIARY HOSPITAL, ST. ANDREWS, FIFE

Fig. 257. Castlecliffe c1919, showing the original conservatory leading off the drawing room to the south. David Bryce, 1869.
Fig. 258. Castlecliffe under construction, 1869-70.
Stirling Lane Esq.
18 George Street
April 17, 1869

Dear Sir,

Immediately on receipt of your letter the matter of these proper places erected at the nuisance complained of should be obviated and understood from the contract which I have here. This has been done, but I am at it today and I trust on his return that my order has not been attended to solicited when less than the places are erected humano.

Sincerely yours,
David Bryce

Fig. 259. Letter from David Bryce to Stuart Grace informing him that 'proper places' would be erected so as to obviate the nuisance complained of, 17th April 1869.
April 15, 1869

Dear Sir,

I have ascertain that Mr. McIntosh has not yet got the plans for the new Sexton's Cell, he promised to have it done three weeks ago. I have written him today hoping that they may be no further delay. I have also instructed him today the Planning for Burden House before the commencement of Police and also Excise.

A letter asking permission to join the common drain in the North Street into the drain from the House which please present.

Yours faithfully,

[Signature]

Stewart Bryce

[Signature]
Fig. 261. Part of the feuing plan of Scores Park by John Henderson, showing the pencilled in plan of Castlecliffe.
Fig. 262. Mills and Shepherd's principal floor plan of Castlecliffe, 1920.
Fig. 263. Mills and Shepherd's first floor plan of Castlecliffe, 1920. Originally the girls' dining room would have been the large entrance hall, the house mistresses' sitting room the library, the school room the drawing room, and the drawing room the dining room.
Fig. 264. Kinburn House, attributed to John Milne, 1856.
Fig. 265. 79-83 North Street, Robert Balfour, 1824-25.
Fig. 266. Westerlee, John Milne, erected 1865-67.
Fig. 267. Liscombe, Thomas Cappon, erected 1893-94.
Fig. 268. Craigard, attributed to Hall and Henry, erected 1870-71.
Fig. 269. Hall and Henry's East Bay View and Castlelea, erected 1870-71. Bay windows added 1902.
Fig. 270. Hall and Henry's Castlegate, west elevation, erected 1879-80.
Fig. 271. Castlemount, David Henry's extensions of 1874 and 1914 to an earlier classical house.
Fig. 272. Hall and Henry's Kilrymont, erected 1885-86; George Birrell's Dhu Craig, erected 1873.
Fig. 273  Hall and Henry's The Hirsel, erected 1879-80.
Fig. 274. David Henry's St. Colme's, erected 1890-91; Hall and Henry's Kilrymont, erected 1885-86; George Birrell's Dhu Craig, erected 1873; and Hall and Henry's The Hirsel, erected 1879-80.
Fig. 275. John Milne's St. Salvator's, erected 1879-80, (modern addition to front).
Fig. 276. Fr. Angus's 'rough - very rough sketch of an ideal church', 1884.
Fig. 277. St. James' Roman Catholic Church, the 'Tin Temple' or 'Tin Tabernacle', erected 1885, and the Presbytery designed by James Gillespie, erected 1885-86.
Fig. 278. Reginald Fairlie's St. James' Church, shortly after completion in 1910.
Fig. 279. Alternative proposed elevation for St. James' Presbytery by James Gillespie, dated 29th November 1884. Rejected by Fr. Angus for being too large and too expensive.
Fig. 280. Proposed elevation for St. James’ Presbytery by James Gillespie, dated 29th November 1884. Rejected by Fr. Angus for being too large and too expensive.
Fig. 281. Fr. Angus's sketch of the revised proposals for the Presbytery, April 1885.
Fig. 282. St. James' Presbytery, designed by James Gillespie, erected 1885-86.
Fig. 283. James Gillespie's alternative front elevation of St. James' Presbytery, dated 6th June 1885.
Fig. 284. James Gillespie’s front elevation of St. James’ Presbytery, dated 6th June 1885.
Fig. 285. Ground floor plan of St. James' Presbytery by James Gillespie (as executed), dated 6th June 1885.
Fig. 286. First floor plan of St. James' Presbytery by James Gillespie (as executed), dated 6th June 1885.
Fig. 287. The Scores, between 1886 and c.1890, showing from left to right, the Baths, University House, Rockview, Presbytery, Tin Tabernacle, Clifton Bank, The Whaum, and the northern boundary wall of what became Murray Park.
Fig. 288. Kilrule, erected 1891-92, architect unknown.
Fig. 289. Castlehouse, erected 1893-94, attributed to Thomas Cappon.
Fig. 290. No. 27 Murray Park, showing the Scores elevation, attributed to John Milne, erected 1893-94.
Fig. 291. Gillespie and Scott’s St. Swithin's (Canmore), erected 1893–94.
Fig. 292. David Henry's Scores Villas, erected 1895-96.
Fig. 293. John Milne's Westcliffe (Russell Hotel) and Hazelbank, erected 1896-97; David Henry's Tayview (New Halls, Craigmount Nursing Home) erected 1897-98; John Milne's Kinellar (Craigmount Nursing Home) erected 1898.
Fig. 294. John Milne’s Westcliffe (Russell Hotel), erected 1896.
Fig. 295. John Milne’s Hazelbank, erected 1897.
Fig. 296. David Henry’s Tayview (New Halls, Craigmount Nursing Home), erected 1898.
Fig. 297. John Milne's Kinellar (Craigmouth Nursing Home), erected 1898.
Fig. 298. Sir Robert Rowand Anderson’s Swallowgate, erected 1894-95.
Fig. 299. Sir Robert Rowand Anderson's Swallowgate, north elevation, signed and dated September 1894.
Fig. 300. Sir Robert Rowand Anderson’s Swallowgate, east elevation, signed and dated September 1894.
Fig. 301. Sir Robert Rowand Anderson's Swallowgate, ground and first floor plans.
Fig. 302. Sir Robert Rowand Anderson’s Swallowgate, second and attic floor plans.
Fig. 303. Sir Robert Rowand Anderson's Swallowgate, sections.
Fig. 304. Sir Robert Rowand Anderson’s Swallowgate, showing the east elevation of the extension of 1910-11.
Fig. 305. Sir Robert Rowand Anderson's Swallowgate, showing the south elevation of the extension of 1910-11.
Fig. 306. Gillespie and Scott’s Kennedy House, erected 1895-96.
Fig. 307. Gillespie and Scott's St. Katherine's West, erected 1897-98.
Fig. 308. James M. Monro’s Grand Hotel (Hamilton Hall), erected 1893-95, showing John Burnet’s entrance porch of 1906.
Fig. 309. Dressing room at the Grand Hotel before 1904.
Fig. 310. Dining room at the Grand Hotel before 1904.
Fig. 311. Entrance hall at the Grand Hotel before its remodelling in 1906.
This Splendid Hotel, the most modern and best equipped, occupies the finest site in St. Andrews, adjoining the Royal and Ancient Golf Club House and overlooking the Links and Bay.

Apply: The Manager.

Fig. 312. Advertisement for the Grand Hotel, c1910.
Fig. 313. 74-76 Market Street, attributed to John Milne, 1873.
Fig. 314. 15 and 16 The Links, Jesse Hall and David Henry 1872-73 and 1875.
Fig. 315. West front of the Senzie Hall and Library of St. Leonard's College in 1804.